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John Morgan 1760 -1850

What do we know about John Morgan other than that he gave his name to
Morgan Academy?

John Morgan was a self-made millionaire. Like most Victorian self-made men he tried unsuccessfully to suggest that he came from aristocratic stock. The truth is that his grandfather, also John, was born around 1680, and was tenant of Mains of Gardyne farm. He failed and became tenant of Ravensby, in Barry. He left there and lived at Wallace Craigie, but was eventually imprisoned in the tollbooth for debt in 1729, and died in 1732. His widow settled in Dundee and her son, Thomas, was apprenticed to a brewer, and was entered a "master maltman" in 1756. He opened a tavern in Kirk Wynd, and in 1757 married Janet Cramond. They had two sons and two daughters who survived to adulthood. John  Morgan, our hero, was the eldest surviving son and was born on 28th February 1760. 
Thomas prospered and his two surviving sons were educated at Dundee Grammar School. John became a law apprentice and his younger brother, Thomas, a surgeon. 

Like most ambitious youngsters, they saw their future in foreign parts and,
with the help of the famous MP George Dempster of Dunnichan, they joined the Honourable East India Company. In 1784 John became a "free merchant" in Calcutta and Thomas Assistant Surgeon in the service of the Company. They were aged 24 and 20 years respectively.

Sadly, their father, Thomas, had to leave his tavern in Kirk Wynd. He took up smaller premises in the Nethergate and adopted the sign of the Royal Oak. Things got worse, and he eventually claimed a pension from the Maltman Incorporation. In 1799, he died in poverty and was buried in the Howff. Fortunately, remittances from John and Thomas kept the wolf from the door for his widow and daughters. 

John saved enough money to become an indigo-planter and his brother joined him. They amassed a large fortune and decided to return home. In 1812, some 28 years after they left, the brothers came back to Dundee where they rented the mansion of Balgay. John took his mother and sisters to 17 Coates Crescent, Edinburgh. Later that year Thomas, the younger brother, died and was buried in Greyfriars churchyard, where John had a monument raised. The grave, like many others in the days of the Resurrectionists, is surrounded by iron railings. The inscription shows that six members of the family were buried there, including John. Also, in 1817, John had a white table-top marble stone, resting on six pillars and surrounded by an iron railing, erected in the Howff, giving details of his father, mother and three of his brothers and sisters who are buried there. 

After his death in 1850, aged 90, his will was found. This will was written on add scraps of paper, with bits deleted, and the pieces of paper had to be joined together to make any kind of sense. 
On one scrap it was written that those who succeeded to his property should maintain the graves in Edinburgh and Dundee in good condition and to renew the inscriptions when necessary. 

He also declared his wish to establish a hospital in Dundee, for the education of 100 sons of Dundee Tradesmen. After his death, because of the problems with his will written in this haphazard fashion, the Nine Trades of Dundee, together with the Town Council, went to the Court of Session to argue, against family claimants, for the money to build the hospital. 

Twice the claim was lost in the Court of Session and, finally, after going to the House of Lords, this judgement was overturned. This decision was particularly strange, as the Court of Session was correct in law. 

However Dundee certainly won and the Morgan Hospital was built. The school was eventually taken over by the School Board and became one of Dundee’s three Public Grammar Schools.

Sadly the Morgan family gravestone has suffered badly over the years. The flat marble slab stood on six pillars. As early as 1906 one of the pillars crumbled and the Trustees, to their shame, knocked the other pillars down and laid the slab on top of them. Much later the marble slab broke in two and is in a poor state.

Salvation has come for this memorial to the family of such a famous old boy of our School. 

The Nine Incorporated Trades of Dundee have again come to the rescue. Plans are well in hand to have new pillars made and the beautiful marble slab repaired and cleaned. This should be completed later this year, and the memorial will be worthy of its benefactor. 
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